102147-0

FILED
Court of Appeals
Division III
State of Washington
6/30/2023 3:52 PM
COA No. 38858-1-III

FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 7/3/2023 BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

LYRA JEAN SPENCER, Appellant,

V.

FRANKLIN HILLS HEALTH, LLC, Respondent.

PETITION FOR REVIEW

CHAD H. FREEBOURN, WSBA #35624
KEVIN ROBERTS, WSBA #29473
Roberts | Freebourn, PLLC
1325 W. 1st Ave., Ste. 303
Spokane, Washington 99201
(509) 381-5262
Chad@robertsfreebourn.com
kevin@robertsfreebourn.com
Counsel for Respondent

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER
II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION
III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW
IV. STATEMENT OF CASE
V. ARGUMENT
A. THE COURT OF APPEALS DECISION CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT ISSUED IN JOHANSON AND RCW 4.28.080(9)
B. THE PETITION INVOLVES AN ISSUE OF SUBSTANTIAL PUBLIC INTEREST THAT SHOULD BE DETERMINED BY THE SUPREME COURT. RAP 13.4(B)(4)
VI. CONCLUSION14

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

<u>Page</u>			
<u>Cases</u>			
Crystal, China and Gold, LTD v. Factoria Center Investments, Inc., 93 Wash. App. 606, 610 (1999)7,9,13,14			
<u>HomeStreet, Inc. v. State, Dept. of Revenue</u> , 166 Wash.2d 444, 451, 210 P.3d 297 (2009)			
<u>Johanson v. United Truck Lines</u> , 62 Wash.2d 437, 440, 383 P.2d 512 (1963)			
Lyra Jean Spencer v. Franklin Hills Health Spokane, LLC, 38858-1-III			
Ralph's Concrete Plumbing, Inc. v. Concord Concrete Pumps, Inc., 154 Wash. App. 581, 585, 225 P.3d 1035 (2010)7,13,14			
<u>State ex. Rel. Schilling v. Barnett</u> , 79 Wash.2d 578, 584, 488 P.2d 255 (1971)9			
State v. Dennis, 191 Wash.2d 169, 173 (2018)13			
<u>Wash. State Human Rights Comm'n v. Cheney Sch. Dist. No.</u> 30, 97 Wash.2d 118, 121, 641 P.2d 163 (1982)8			
<u>Witt v. Port of Olympia</u> , 126 Wash. App. 752, 757 (2005)			
<u>STATUTES</u>			
RCW 23.95.45010			
RCW 23B.05.0404,10			

RCW 4.28.080(9)passim
RAP 13.4(b)(1)
RAP 13.4(b)(4)6,11
OTHER AUTHORITIES
14 TEGLAND § 4.40, at 108
1987 Final Legislative Report, HB 1199, 50 th Wash. Leg. Reg. Sess. At 173

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

The Petitioner is Franklin Hills Health, LLC ("Franklin").

Petitioner Franklin Hills was the defendant in the Spokane

County Superior Court Cause No. 21-2-01861-32 and the

Respondent in Lyra Jean Spencer v. Franklin Hills Health

Spokane, LLC, 38858-1-III,

II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Petitioner seeks review of the opinion issued in Lyra Jean Spencer v. Franklin Hills Health Spokane, LLC, 38858-1-III, dated June 1, 2023, hereafter "Opinion" and attached as Appendix A.

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. Did the Court of Appeals incorrectly adopt a standard that would eliminate the burden by the Plaintiff to produce evidence that service was proper?
- 2. In order to establish a prima facie showing of proper service is a Plaintiff required to produce evidence that strictly complies with the requirements of RCW 4.28.080(9)

- 3. In order to establish prima facie evidence that the person served is a "managing agent," does the Plaintiff have to provide evidence that establishes the employee has substantial management of the entities affairs generally or in a particular district or locality?
- 4. Is an evidentiary hearing required simply because an employees title includes the term "manager" of a department within the entity?
- 5. Is an evidentiary hearing required where one was not requested by the Plaintiff and the evidence establishes the employee did not meet the requirements of a "managing agent?"

IV. STATEMENT OF CASE

On August 10, 2021, David Kenworthy, a process server hired by Lyra Jean Spencer ("Spencer"), appeared at Franklin Hills to serve its registered agent. CP 39. Prior to traveling to Franklin, Mr. Kenworthy researched the identity of the registered agent for Franklin by going to the Washington State Secretary of State website and discovered the registered agent was Jeremy Tolman and he was located at 6021 N. Lidgerwood Street,

Spokane, Washington 99208. CP 38-39. Mr. Kenworthy is an experienced process server with over 15-years of experience and was aware that he needed to serve the registered agent for Franklin. CP 38-39. When Mr. Kenworthy arrived at Franklin, he was informed that Mr. Tolman was unavailable. CP 39. At that time, Sheri Flavel, an employee of Franklin appeared in the front area of Franklin and Mr. Kenworthy served the Summons, Complaint, Interrogatories and Case Assignment Notice on Ms. Flavel. CP 39.

Ms. Flavel never indicated she was authorized to accept service on behalf of Franklin and did not direct Mr. Kenworthy to hand the documents to her. CP 5; CP 39. Ms. Flavel has never been authorized by Franklin to accept service of legal documents, and it is not part of her duties of her employment at Franklin. CP 5. At the time of service, Ms. Flavel had been employed by Franklin for two-years and this was the first time she had ever been handed legal documents. CP 5.

On January 7, 2022, Franklin filed a motion to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction and insufficient service of process in the Spokane County Superior Court. CP 17-27. Franklin's motion to dismiss was supported by the Declaration of Sheri Flavel and the Declaration of Christopher DePretis. CP 4-16. The supporting declarations showed the registered agent for service for Franklin was Jeremy Tolman, and that Ms. Flavel was not a proper person for service as identified under RCW 4.28.080(9). CP 4-16.

On February 8, 2022, the trial court issued its decision dismissing Spencer's Complaint as a result of improper service. CP 56. The trial court specifically noted in its decision that Spencer failed to meet her initial burden showing proper service on individuals delineated in the applicable statutes: RCW 23B.05.040 and RCW 4.28.080(9). CP 56. The Order dismissing Spencer's Complaint was also entered on February 8, 2022. CP 57-58. On February 18, 2022, Spencer filed a Motion

for Reconsideration, which was denied by the trial court. CP 59-65; 71-83.

No facts in the record show Ms. Flavel was the assistant to the registered agent for service for Franklin, Jeremy Tolman or that she was a substantial part of management of the general affairs of Franklin. Spencer did not request an evidentiary hearing and did not dispute the evidence presented by Franklin establishing that Ms. Flavel was not a managing agent of Franklin and that she was not the office assistant to the president or other head of the company. Based on the failure to meet the requirements of RCW 4.28.080(9), Superior Court Judge Moreno correctly dismissed the action.

Division III incorrectly reversed the determination by the Trial court and concluded that a prima facie case showing had been made that service was proper solely because Ms. Flavel's title weas the manager of the human resources department. The Opinion is based contrary to this Court's decision <u>Johanson v. United Truck Lines</u>, 62 Wn .2d 437, 441 (1963). The decision

improperly expands the scope beyond the plain language of the statute and the <u>Johanson</u> decision. Rather than limiting service to managing agents that have management of the affairs of the entity generally in a particular district or locality, like a branch manager. It would extend it to every head of distinct internal departments. Effectively, the Court of Appeals has created a rule that would eliminate the burden by a Plaintiff to establish service was proper and would result in an evidentiary hearing in nearly every case.

Because Spencer failed to meet her initial burden to show service was proper, the trial court correctly dismissed her Complaint and the Court of Appeals erred but issuing a decision contrary to <u>Johanson</u>.

V. ARGUMENT

Petitioner seeks review by the Washington Supreme Court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1) and RAP 13.4(b)(4).

A. The Court of Appeals Decision Conflicts With the Decision of the Supreme Court Issued In <u>Johanson</u> and RCW 4.28.080(9)

Strict compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9) is required to accomplish service on a corporation in Washington. "Mere receipt of process and actual notice alone do not establish valid service of process." Ralph's Concrete Plumbing, Inc. v. Concord Concrete Pumps, Inc., 154 Wash. App. 581, 585, 225 P.3d 1035 (2010); see also Crystal, China and Gold, LTD v. Factoria Center Investments, Inc., 93 Wash. App. 606, 610 (1999).t 609-610 (rejecting the contention that substantial compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9) suffices). The Washington Legislature has said that under RCW 4.28.080(9), "[p]ersonal service must be made on the person designated by statute." Witt v. Port of Olympia, 126 Wash. App. 752, 757 (2005), citing, 1987 Final Legislative Report, HB 1199, 50th Wash. Leg. Reg. Sess. At 173.

When a defendant moves to dismiss for insufficient service, the plaintiff has the initial burden of coming forward

with evidence making a *prima facie* showing of proper service.

Witt v. Port of Olympia, 126 Wash. App. 752, 757 (2005). A

plaintiff may make a showing of proper service by submitting
an affidavit of service "that on its face shows that service was

properly carried out." Id., citing, 14 TEGLAND § 4.40, at 108.

A showing of proper service includes showing the person served
was truly a managing agent for the purposes of RCW
4.28.080(9). Johanson v. United Truck Lines, 62 Wash.2d 437,
440, 383 P.2d 512 (1963). It is only if the plaintiff makes this
initial showing, then the burden shifts to the defendant. Id.

When interpreting a statute, the Court first looks at the plain language of the statute. HomeStreet, Inc. v. State, Dept. of Revenue, 166 Wash.2d 444, 451, 210 P.3d 297 (2009). "Where statutory language is plain and unambiguous, a statute's meaning must be derived from the wording of the statute itself." Wash. State Human Rights Comm'n v. Cheney Sch. Dist. No. 30, 97 Wash.2d 118, 121, 641 P.2d 163 (1982). Courts give the words in a statute their plain, common and

ordinary meaning, and where the statute is clear on its face it is not subject to judicial construction. HomeStreet, Inc., 166 Wash.2d at 451-452. "Each word of a statute is to be accorded meaning." Id. at 452, quoting, State ex. Rel. Schilling v. Barnett, 79 Wash.2d 578, 584, 488 P.2d 255 (1971).

Service upon individuals who are not listed on the statute do not effectuate service upon a corporation. Crystal, China and Gold, LTD v. Factoria Center Investments, Inc., 93 Wash. App. 606, 610 (1999). "[T]he service statute for corporations communicates the Legislature's decision that only persons holding certain positions can accept service on behalf of a corporation." Witt, 126 Wash. App. at 758.

The Trial court correctly concluded that Spencer failed to meet her initial burden on Franklin's motion to dismiss to show service was proper on its face. The declaration submitted by Mr. Kenworthy showed he knew the proper person for service, Jeremy Tolman, and simply failed to accomplish service as required. CP 38-39. Mr. Kenworthy's declaration states that he

served Ms. Flavel with the Summons. Compliant, Interrogatories and Case Scheduling Order; however, it does not say that Ms. Flavel was authorized to accept service on behalf of Franklin. CP 38-39. The trial court examined Mr. Kenworthy's declaration in light to the appliable statutes, RCW 23B.05.040 & RCW 23.95.450, and RCW 4.28.080(9) and correctly determined that his declaration did not show proper service. CP 56. Spencer failed to present evidence that Ms. Flavel was a proper person to effectuate service on Franklin.

Despite citing to <u>Johanson</u>, Division III expanded the scope of the existing law. <u>Johanson</u> held that a branch manager or someone with similar authority for a district or locality constituted a managing agent under the statute. <u>Johanson</u>, 62 Wn.2d at 440. As recognized by Division III, this meant there had to be evidence the individual had "some substantial part in the management of its affairs generally or in a particular district or locality." **Appendix A**, p. 7. However, the Division III decision then expanded the scope to include individual

department heads and removed the requirement of presenting evidence of the person having substantial management in general from the prima facie case. Specifically, without any other evidence Division III decided that under its new standard a prima facie case could be made simply because an employee's title is one that describes them as the head of a department. In this case, because the employee's title was "HR Manager." Without any evidence beyond the title of managing a department, Division III decided a prima facie showing was made. This is contrary to the strict burden under Washington law and the limitations of Johanson. The simple fact someone may manage a department is not the equivalent of managing a branch or distinct location for the general affairs of the business. Division III incorrectly added an exception to the prima facie case which essentially removed the burden from Plaintiffs. This is in conflict with the direction of Johanson.

B. The Petition Involves An Issue of Substantial Public Interest That Should be Determined By The Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b)(4).

Division III's opinion reduced the burden of proof by Plaintiff to basically utilizing internal department titles instead of requiring evidence that the person served met the strict definitions of the statute. Across Washington, businesses operate with employees who manage distinct departments, like HR but who are not in charge of or have any involvement the general operation of the affairs the company. Under Division III's decision, merely identifying a title that includes the word manager without any other evidence will meet the prima facie case. This decision is of public interest since in nearly every case where a department employee, as opposed to a branch manager, will result in an evidentiary hearing. This will necessarily result in great expense to companies in Washington and will result in an increased burden on the judicial system.

Plaintiff's argument would render the individuals specifically identified within RCW 4.28.080(9) meaningless in

violation of the tenants of statutory interpretation and allow service on nearly any employee being held to meet the prima facie showing. State v. Dennis, 191 Wash.2d 169, 173 (2018). As a result, nearly every motion to dismiss will result in an evidentiary hearing based on title alone.

Washington law requires the trial court to strictly construe the statutory requirements of service under RCW 4.28.080(9). Factoria, 93 Wash. App. at 609-610 (rejecting the contention that substantial compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9) suffices); see also, Ralph's Concrete Plumbing, Inc. v. Concord Concrete Pumps, Inc., 154 Wash. App. 581, 585, 225 P.3d 1035 (2010). Spencer failed to submit any evidence that Ms. Flavel is one of the persons identified within RCW 4.28.080(9) to accept service on behalf of Franklin. This evidence is essential because there is no substantial compliance with the statute allowed, only strict compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9) will suffice. Factoria, 93 Wash. App. at 609-610.

It is also important, that in the responsive pleadings to Franklin's motion to dismiss, Spencer never raised the issue of an evidentiary hearing. CP 32-37. The only evidence before the trial court showed Ms. Flavel did not meet the statutory requirements to accept service on behalf of Franklin, and Spencer failed to submit evidence to the contrary or make a request for an evidentiary hearing to explore the issue further. At the end of the day, the trial court made the correct decision by strictly construing RCW 4.28.080(9) as the Legislature intended and determined that Spencer had not met her initial burden to show service was proper. Factoria, 93 Wash. App. at 609-610 (rejecting the contention that substantial compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9) suffices); see also, Ralph's Concrete Plumbing, Inc. v. Concord Concrete Pumps, Inc., 154 Wash. App. 581, 585, 225 P.3d 1035 (2010). Division III created a new standard that should be reversed.

VI. CONCLUSION

For all the reasons set forth above, the decision of Division III should be reviewed and reversed.

This document contains 2271 number of words, excluding the parts of the document exempted from the word count by RAP 18.17.