FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
7/28/2023 1:20 PM
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

No. 1021470 SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

LYRA JEAN SPENCER

Appellant,

and

FRANKLIN HILLS HEALTH, LLC.,

Respondent

APPELLANT LYRA JEAN SPENCER'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

DAVID E. TURPLESMITH, WSBA No. 32873 MEYER THORP, PLLC P.O. Box 87 Spokane, WA 99210-0087 (509)533-1511

Attorney for Appellant

I.	INTRODUCTION
II.	IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT
III.	STATEMENT OF THE CASE
IV.	ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED 4
	A. Division III's decision correctly applies relevant case law and RCW 4.28.080(9)4
	B. Petitioner/Defendant Franklin Hills LLC, fails to establish an issue of substantial public interest6
V.	CONCLUSION8

Table of Authorities

Pages		
Washington Cases		
Dalen v. St. John Med. Ctr.,5		
8 Wn.App. 2d. 49, 436 P.3d 877 (2019).		
Weber v. Associated Surgeons, PS,		
166 Wn.2d 161, 206 P.3d 671 (2009).		
Reiner v. Pittsburg Des Moines Corp.,5		
101 Wn.2d 475, 477, 680 P.2d 55 (1984)		
Crose v. Wolkswagenwerk Aktiengesellschaft,5		
88 Wn.2d 50, 58, 558 P.2d 764 (1977).		
Johanson v. United Truck Lines,		
62 Wn.2d 437, 383 P.2d 512 (1963).		
State v. Watson,7		
155 Wn.2d 574, 577, 122 P.3d 903 (2005).		
Constitutional Provisions, Statutes, and Court Rules		
Pages		
Washington State Statutes		
RCW 4.28.080(9)1,4,6,7		
Court Rules		
GR 14.1(a)5		
RAP 13.4(B)(4)		

I. INTRODUCTION

The Plaintiff properly served the Defendant, Franklin Hills Health, LLC, with the summons, complaint, interrogatories and case assignment notice on August 10, 2021. In an unpublished opinion, Division III of the Court of appeals, using well-developed standards for judicial review, determined that the Superior Court erred when it determined that service upon the Defendant was not in compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9). The Petitioner, Defendants Franklin Hills Health, LLC has failed to properly identify any aspect of Division III's decision that conflicts with the authority of the Court and also fails to reasonably identify any part of this decision that affects a substantial public interest pursuant to RAP 13.4(B)(4). This Court should deny review.

II. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

The Plaintiff in this case, Lyra Jean Spencer, opposes the petition for review.

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Lyra Jean Spencer filed a personal injury lawsuit against the Defendant,
Franklin Hills Health-Spokane, LLC, on July 8, 2021 in Spokane County Superior
Court, Docket No. 21-2-01861-32. On or about August 10, 2021, the summons,
complaint, interrogatories and case assignment notice were served on Sheri Flavel,

Human Resources and Payroll Manager for the Defendant at the Defendant's business location at 6021 N. Lidgerwood St, Spokane WA 99208. CP 44. The registered agent, Jeremy Tolman, was not available to be served. CP 39. Ms. Flavel works directly for Mr. Tolman, who is also the Executive Director for Franklin Hills Health, LLC, and whose office is also at 6021 N. Lidgerwood St., Spokane, WA. CP 4; 8; RP 14, ¶ 10-15. Ms. Flavel signed the case assignment notice with her name, the date of 8-10-21 and her position, HR Manager. CP 42.

David Kenworthy, a process server in Spokane, Washington with approximately 15 years of experience, was hired by Plaintiff's counsel to serve the Defendant with the summons and complaint. CP 38. Mr. Kenworthy researched the Defendant, Franklin Hills Health-Spokane, on the Washington State Secretary of State website. CP 38. The Secretary of State's website listed the registered agent as Jeremy Tolman and the registered agent's address as 6021 N. Lidgerwood St., Spokane WA. CP 38 -39. This address is also the corporation's principal office mailing address. CP 39. On or about August 10, 2021, Mr. Kenworthy traveled to 6021 N. Lidgerwood St, Spokane WA 99208 to serve the summons, complaint, interrogatories and case assignment notice. CP 39. Mr. Kenworthy let the initial person he spoke with know that he had legal papers to serve on the company and he asked for Jeremy Tolman to accept service. CP 39. Mr. Kenworthy was informed that Jeremy Tolman was not available. CP 39. Sheri Flavel come to the front area and accepted the summons, complaint, interrogatories

and case assignment notice. CP 39. She signed the case assignment notice with her name, the date of 8-10-21 and her position, HR Manager. CP 39; 42. Ms. Flavel never indicated that she was not authorized to accept legal papers or that there was another person present who had authority to accept legal papers. CP 39.

On January 7, 2022 the Defendant filed a Motion to Dismiss for Failure to Properly Serve the Summons and Complaint. CP 26-27. Oral argument was heard on February 4, 2022 before the Honorable Maryann Moreno. During the hearing, it was stated that Ms. Flavel worked for the executive director of the Franklin Hills, Mr. Tolman, who was also the registered agent for Franklin Hills. RP 13, ¶¶ 15-22 and RP 14, ¶¶ 10-15. Mr. Tolman was Ms. Flavel's boss. RP 14, ¶¶ 15

The Court considered the motions, memorandums, and declarations of the parties, the court file, and the arguments of counsel. CP 57. On February 8, 2022 the Court issued an Order granting the Defendant's Motion and dismissed the case. CP 56-58.

The Plaintiff filed a Motion for Reconsideration on February 18, 2022. CP 59-65. The Trial Court denied the Plaintiff's Motion for Reconsideration. CP 83-85. The Plaintiff filed an Appeal to the Washington State Court of Appeals, Division III. CP 86-91.

IV. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

A. Division III's decision correctly applies relevant case law and RCW 4.28.080(9).

Division III's decision in *Spencer v. Franklin Hills Health, LLC* is a proper application of Supreme Court precedent, including *Weber v. Associated Surgeons*, *PS*, 166 Wn.2d 161, 206 P.3d 671 (2009) and the relevant statute, RCW 4.28.080(9), because the Court required strict compliance with the statute and required service on a managing agent and/or office assistant to the registered agent. Division III spent considerable time illustrating how modern business operates and that antiquated methods of employee titles and functions are not proper in today's modern business environment. The *Weber* case is a proper interpretation on service of process and the Court correctly recognized the changing nature of business and corporations. The Court of Appeals decision is correct and properly applies the most recent and relevant case law from the Supreme Court.

Sheri Flavel, either as a managing agent due to her position as human resources and accounts receivable manager, or as an office assistant working for the registered agent, was properly served. Application of *Johanson v. United Truck Lines*, 62 Wn.2d 437, 383 P.2d 512 (1963), a case that is approximately 60 years old, does not change the analysis or conclusion of the Court of Appeals. Division III, at length, analyses the nature of business and the changing organization of agents and

managers in a business and correctly concluded that the Defendant was properly served when Sheri Flavel, as a managing agent or office assistant was served on August 10, 2021 with the summons and complaint.

As Division II ruled in an unpublished portion of *Dalen v. St. John Med.*Ctr., 8 Wn.App. 2d. 49, 436 P.3d 877 (2019), cited here pursuant to GR 14.1(a),

"express authority to accept service is not necessary." *Id, citing to Reiner v.*Pittsburg Des Moines Corp., 101 Wn.2d 475, 477, 680 P.2d 55 (1984) and Crose

v. Wolkswagenwerk Aktiengesellschaft, 88 Wn.2d 50, 58, 558 P.2d 764 (1977).

Express authority to accept service is not required. To require that would yield absurd results and be contrary to the statute which allows for service on registered agents or their office assistants, or managing agents, the latter two of which Flavel was, because an employer or business could simply deny authority accept service to its employees/agents and if the registered agent were unavailable, service would be impossible, resulting in the unnecessary delay or denial of Justice in our legal system.

A managing agent of a corporation "must have some substantial part in the management of its affairs generally or in a particular district or locality." *Johanson v. United Truck Lines*, 62 Wn.2d 437,440, 383 P.2d 512 (1963). The record contains sufficient evidence that Sheri Flavel was an assistant to the registered agent or was a managing agent. Flavel's declaration states that she is the human resources and accounts receivable manager for Franklin Hills LLC. CP 4. She is in charge of

personnel and accounts receivable, which is a substantial part of management. CP 4. Sheri Flavel works at the same location as the executive director/registered agent for the Defendant corporation, Jeremy Tolman. CP 4, 8, and 39. Flavel serves under executive director/ registered agent Tolman. CP 4. During the February 22, 2022 hearing the defendant argued that Flavel works for registered agent. RP 14, ¶¶10-15. The record is complete with evidence that Flavel is a managing agent and /or an office assistant to the registered agent, and therefore service on her was proper under RCW 4.28.080(9).

Service on a designated person was accomplished, when the summons, complaint, interrogatories, and case assignment notice were served on Sheri Flavel, a managing agent and/or assistant to the registered. The requirements of RCW 4.28.080(9) and case law have been met. The Court of Appeals did not expand any definition of a managing agent. Division III's application of the rules established in *Johanson* and *Weber*, and RCW 4.28.080(9) are consistent with established case law, and it is not in need of review by the Supreme Court.

B. Petitioner/Defendant Franklin Hills LLC, fails to establish an issue of substantial public interest.

The petition does not involve an issue of substantial public interest. RAP 13.4(B)(4). The opinion of Division III in this case is a proper application of the current law, is limited in scope and results in a case remanded back to the trial

court for further determination. The Defendant can continue to defend its position and interests, just as the Plaintiff must properly prosecute her case. The Defendant has not identified a "sweeping implication of the Court of appeals decision" requiring the Supreme Court grant review. *State v. Watson*, 155 Wn.2d 574, 577, 122 P.3d 903 (2005). This case is not in need of determination by the Supreme Court.

The Court of Appeals decision does not render RCW 4.28.080(9) meaningless. The hyperbole espoused by defendant that any employee could be served is simply not accurate—only people in the statute could be served, not any employee. The decision of Division III does not eliminate, ignore, or replace the requirements for service pursuant to RCW 4.28.080(9). Division III did not make any employee capable of accepting service for corporation. As the Supreme Court ruled in *Weber*, service that occurred in a situation similar to the facts in this case was in compliance with RCW 4.28.080(9). *Weber v. Associated Surgeons, P.S.*, 166 Wn.2d 161, 206 P.3d 671 (2009). The Court of Appeals in this case is correctly applying established law. RCW 4.28.080(9) requires service on certain people and the Court of Appeals decisions in this case maintains that. There is no issue of substantial public interest. RAP 13.4(B)(4).

C. CONCLUSION

The Court of Appeals properly applied the law and made the correct decision in this case. The Petitioner, Franklin Hills Health, LLC, has not demonstrated a conflict between the decision of Division III and this Court; they simply do not like the outcome. Neither has the Petitioner established that this case involves a substantial public interest. There is no need for Supreme Court review. This Court should deny review.

I certify that this brief contains 1,683 words, excluding those portions exempt under RAP 18.17.